
   
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 
 
 

 

7 December 2022 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) on 
Thursday, 15th December, 2022 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room  Municipal Buildngs  West Street  Boston 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Paul Goodale 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
 Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Katie Chalmers, Anton Dani, 

Anne Dorrian, Viven Edge, Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, 
Neill Hastie, Martin Howard, Brian Rush and Yvonne Stevens 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

C   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 

 To report progress on outstanding actions from the minutes of the last meeting, for 
information only. 
 

D   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

E   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on  Monday 12 December 2022. 
 

F   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME  
 

 To allow members of the public to address the Committee. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 

 

1   BTAC SMALL GRANTS SCHEME AND BTAC EMPOWERING HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES GRANT SCHEME (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

 A report by the Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC Grant 
Administrator 
 

2   CRIME AND DISORDER REPORT TO INCLUDE REPRESENTATION BY 
LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE (Pages 11 - 38) 
 

 A report by the Community Safety Manager  
 

3   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 39 - 40) 
 

 Standing Item.  
 

 
 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314226  email: 
karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

3 November 2022 

Present: Councillor Paul Goodale (Chairman), Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Katie Chalmers, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, Martin Griggs, 
Neill Hastie, Martin Howard, Brian Rush and Yvonne Stevens 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Culture and Leisure, Play and Physical Activity Officer and 
Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
87   APOLOGIES 

 

Apologies for absence were tabled by Councillors Alison Austin and Alan Bell and by 
Portfolio Holder Tracey Abbott. 

 
88   MINUTES 

 

With the agreement of the committee the Chairman signed the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 20 September 2022. 

 
89   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 

The Lead Officer for the committee advised that the request for the update report on 
CCTV Cameras tabled at the last meeting had been taken forward to and would be 
included within the reporting for the next meeting in December, alongside the annual 
CCTV report. 
Members were also advised that Superintendent Coates too will be in attendance 
alongside Inspector Clarkson at that meeting. 
 
90   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 

None 

 
91   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
In accordance with the Procedure Rules, as Mr. Abbott was not present at this meeting 
the question could not be asked.  A copy of the question, together with the response had 
been circulated to Members for information with a hard copy on placements. 

 
92   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME 

 
None 
 
93   BTAC PLAY AREA IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The Play and Physical Activity Officer presented the report confirming it was the 
outcomes of the member working group, which had been convened following the 2022 
tour of BTAC open spaces and play facilities. 
The group had identified four play areas for improvement with indicative identified by 
various suppliers.   

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
3 November 2022 
 

 
 
However, committee were reassured that should they agree the recommendations, all 
equipment and works would be subject to a full tendering process and standard 
procurement rules and a final report would be tabled back through committee.  
 
Central Park Boston: 

▪ Remove all play equipment on toddler side play area as far as the Spider net, 
▪ Take up surfacing of that area, level area, lay turf to that area and install 4 picnic 

benches on grass area. 
▪ Re-instate the giraffe, car and donkey onto small grass area 
▪ Install new equipment of Water Lilies four way springer and a double horse 

springer or similar. 
▪ Install on opposite side of play area a Junior Fairy Tale unit on grass area or 

similar 
▪ Remove 5 benches running along pathway and concrete flags, make good 

ground and install 3 steel benches. 
▪ Install new outdoor gym equipment 

 

Members were advised that the outdoor gym equipment had already been installed at 
Central Park and as such did not form part of the refurbishment noted above.  
 
St Johns Boston: 

▪ Install a 3 piece section ship comprising of Stern, Crow’s nest and Bow or similar. 
▪ NB Boston Big Local have granted £25,000 towards this project 

 
Garfit’s Lane Boston: 

▪ Install two concrete table tennis tables onto new tarmac area 
This facility being funded by Section 106 monies of £14,000.  
 
Woodville Rd Boston: 

▪ Replacement of Pirate Ship or similar 

Total indicative costs for all refurbishments was £159,541 with funding from Boston Big 
Local and Section 106 confirmed at £39,000 resulting in a potential cost to BTAC of 
£120,541.  Members were advised that the Gym Equipment was not included in the 
costing as that budget had been previously agreed.  Examples of the various equipment 
were referenced with comparable system identified for the 3 piece section ship for St. 
Johns.  
 
Members voiced their support of all the replacement facilities and works needed to 
improve the sites.   
Concern noted the possibility of a repetition of vandalism to the replacement of the 
Galleon at Woodville Road, but there was overall support and agreement of the need to 
replace the initial damaged facility as soon as possible.   Should further vandalism arise 
then consideration would need to be given to any further replacement.  CCTV coverage 
on the site was questioned and it was noted that night-time coverage was never to the 
quality of daytime coverage.  One suggestion raised which was agreed as a possible 
deterrent was to have either floodlights or timer lighting on the facility triggered by a 
presence on the site.  

Page 2



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
3 November 2022 

 

There was support of the proposals for Central Park and recognition of the reasons for 
leaving the site of the play area where it was, with an ease of access to both toilets and 
the catering facility.  The proposal for two chicane gates at the site was agreed as a way 
forward to combat cyclists from riding through the area.  Members also agreed the 
removal of facilities from under the overhanging trees and supported the trimming of the 
trees and agreed the benefits of installing 3 new steel benches which were easier to 
keep clean.  They further supported the re-use of the existing the giraffe, car and donkey 
onto small grass area.  
On viewing a comparable 3 piece section ship for the St. Johns site members agreed it 
would suit the site well.  
 
RESOLVED: 
That the Play and Physical Activity Officer be tasked to take the proposals for all four 
sites forward and undertake a full tendering process for the provision of the facilities 
identified and return a full report back to committee for final agreement.  
 
 
94   BTAC PROJECTED FINANCIAL POSITION 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 INC. 

BTAC COST ANALYSIS 
 

That Chairman welcomed the committee new Finance Manager to the meeting who 
presented the report.   
Members were referred to Appendix 1 which outlined details of the income and 
expenditure relating to BTAC for the financial year 2022/23, with the current projection 
indicating a surplus for the year of £11,407 with a full years’ expenditure forecasted at 
£721,457. 
 
The main projected variances in the year being: 
 

▪ The projected full year expenditure is forecasted to be £721,457; with a projected 
surplus of £11,407. That wouldl transfer to reserves at year end 

 

▪ The balance of the “other projects” budget  forecasted at £51,514  
 

▪ There was an underspend within the BTAC Town Centre Operatives Supplies 
and Services budget of £8480, whereas Employee Overtime budget had 
overspent £666.  There was also an underspend on BTAC Public Conveniences 
premises costs of £6088. 

 

▪ There was an overspend within Open spaces and play areas of £2495. 
 
The opening balance of the BTAC reserve at 1 April 2022 was £302,530 
(comprising £70,000 as the minimum to be held to allow for contingencies –  
as approved in the budget setting report - plus £51,514 for projects as listed  
in Appendix 1. The forecasted total closing balance on BTAC’s reserve is  
£161,389, at 31 March 2023. 
 
Members voiced concern at the level of underspend stating they felt monies paid out by 
residents should be spent on those residents,  but they also recognised the decision 
made within the previous report and the costs that would be incurred and also other 
commitments moving forward which would spend a significant part of the current under 
spend.  
 

Page 3



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
3 November 2022 
 

The cost analysis which had been requested across all services areas for BTAC 
charging was presented but it was agreed by the Chairman and Members, that a greater 
level of detail within each service area was required in order to fully identify all costings 
for each service.   It was agreed that the respective Service Area Manager be requested 
to provide such a detailed breakdown which would be considered at the February 
meeting prior to the considering the budget setting.  The outcomes from the individual 
in-depth reporting for each service would then be included within the BTAC Terms of 
Reference for complete clarity of responsibility for the committee moving forward.   
 
 
95   WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM 

 
Members noted the work programme and the agreed service area reporting would be 
added to the February meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 8.30 pm 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: Boston Town Area Committee 

DATE: 15th December 2022 

SUBJECT: BTAC Small Grant Scheme and BTAC Empowering Healthy 

Communities Grant Scheme 

REPORT AUTHOR: Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC 

Grant Administrator 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

In accordance with the Committee’s Small Grant Scheme, this report presents the applications 

made to the Small Grants Working Group in Round 3 of the financial year 2022/2023 for both 

the BTAC Small Grant Scheme and Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Scheme. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the Committee endorse the recommendations made by the Working Group in respect 
of eligible application/s. 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee’s policy is to consider each eligible application in light of the recommendations 

made by the Small Grant Working Group.  

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None. 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 

 

REPORT 

1.1  3 applications were received in Round 3 of the Boston Town Area Committee Small Grant 

Scheme, which were considered eligible for consideration and 2 applications received in 

Round 3 of the Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Scheme, which were considered 

eligible for consideration. Details of each applicant are set out in Table 1 below.  Working 

Group recommendations to be circulated at full committee as Table 2.  

TABLE 1 

Applicant Scheme Project Amount Requested 

Transported Arts BTAC Small Grant 
Scheme 

Contribution to cost 
of Town Jewels 
conservation project 

£1,000.00 

Headway 
Lincolnshire 

BTAC Small Grant 
Scheme 

Costs towards 
Support Group 
established to 
support brain injury 
survivors and their 
families from BTAC 
area 

£958.00 

Zion Methodist 
Church 

BTAC Small Grant 
Scheme 

Contribution to 24 
months energy costs 
to support the 
Warm Spaces 
Initiative 

£250.00 

HealthWatch Lincs BTAC Empowering 
Healthy 
Communities Grant 
Scheme 

Contribution 
towards the cost of 
2PEAKUP Project 
aimed at supporting 
people to have the 
confidence to speak 
out at public 
consultations – pilot 
project for Fenside 
area 

£1,000.00 

GMLC BTAC Empowering 
Healthy 
Communities Grant 
Scheme 

To support putting 
on 50 free self 
defence classes to 
women and girls 
aged 12+ 

£1,000.00 

 

CONCLUSION 
 
In conclusion, the Working Group recommendations are to be circulated at full Committee for 
consideration, in line with the Committee’s policy which is to consider each eligible application in 
light of the Small Grant Working Group’s recommendations.   
 

 
 

Page 6



 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The value of each grant sought is set out in Table 1.  The Committee’s current Small Grant and 

Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Scheme financial position is set out in the finance pro-

forma that accompanies this report.  

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

This work relates directly to the Local Government Act 2000 and to the Duty of Well-being 

placed upon the Council to promote and improve the well-being of the District.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no climate change and environmental implications directly arising from this report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Priorities supported will promote fairness and inclusion while supporting Boston Town Area 

Committee’s commitment to equal opportunities for all, including those protected 

characteristics identified within the Equalities Act 2010 

There are no equalities implications within this report.  All equalities implications will be 

managed alongside each individual applicant through the monitoring process of project delivery. 

There are no safeguarding implications directly arising from this report. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

CONSULTATION 

Applications have been reviewed by the Small Grant Working Group with their comments set out 

within Table 2 to be circulated at full committee. 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

N/A N/A 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Grant Applications Application summaries are available to BTAC Members on request from 

the Small Grant Scheme Administrator. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

BTAC Small Grants Scheme Working 

Group 

17th November 2022 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development 
Officer and Administrator of the Boston Town Area 
Committee Small Grant Scheme 

maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: Emily Spicer – Assistant Director of Well-Being and 

Community leadership 

Emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Chairman of BTAC 

Councillor Paul Goodale 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8

mailto:maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk


 

 

FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

FROM:  Caroline Thacker-Smith  

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 
REPORT DATE:  15th December 2022 
 
 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026/27 
Revenue      
 

BTAC Small Grants  

 
2,208 

    

Empowering 
Healthy 
Communities Grants  
 

2,000     

Total Revenue Cost 4,208.00     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: 
March 
2022 

Total capital cost 
 

£0    

Revenue cost 
 

£4,208.00  Enter Council or 
Cabinet here 

N/A 

Financial Services Comments 
The committee has £15,044.37 remaining from the BTAC small grants scheme and £16,000 
available from the Empowering Healthy Communities Scheme.  
 
Risk 
 
None 
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

 

  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 

DATE: 15th December 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Crime and Disorder Report 

 

To provide Members with an update on Community Safety 

Partnership work at a local and county level 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Community Safety, Cllr Paul Skinner  

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Emily Spicer, Assistant Director Wellbeing & Community Leadership  

Peter Hunn, Community Safety Manager 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards); 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

1) This report provides an overview of the work currently being undertaken by the Safer 

Lincolnshire Partnership at County level, the South & East Lincolnshire Community Safety 

Partnership at a local level, along with information on CCTV and Anti-Social Behaviour 

activity in Boston. The report recommends that the contents are noted, and additional areas 

of focus are considered for inclusion in future reports. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the content of the report be noted 

2. That Members consider areas of focus to be included in future reports 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

1) The content of the report be noted to ensure that members are up to date on the 

current work being undertaken. 

2) The focus of future updates provides members with an opportunity to advise of areas of 

work they require more detail on. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

1. Do nothing 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Community Safety Partnerships (CSP) were established under the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998. A CSP is required for each local government area, bringing the police, local 

authorities, fire and rescue, health, and probation to formulate strategies for the reduction 

of crime.  

 

1.2 Locally, the South & East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (SELCSP) is an 

informally merged partnership administered through the South and East Lincolnshire 

Council’s Partnership (S&ELCP), covering Boston Borough, East Lindsey, and South Holland. 

At a county level, there is an informally merged partnership known as the Safer Lincolnshire 

Partnership (SLP), administered by Lincolnshire County Council.  

 

1.3 Statutory duties of a Community Safety Partnership are as follows. 

• To prepare and implement a partnership plan (strategic assessment) that sets out a strategy 

for the reduction of reoffending, crime and disorder, combatting substance misuse, 

community engagement and addressing the priorities identified in the strategic assessment.  

 

• To set up protocols and systems for information sharing. 

 

• To regularly engage and consult with the public about their community safety priorities and 

issues. 

 

• To commission domestic homicide reviews (DHR) following notification from the police of a 

domestic homicide. 

 

• To hold one or more public meetings during the year. 

 

1.4 This report will provide an overview of the work of the local SELCSP and the county SLP. The 

report also provides summary data in relation to Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), the Public 

Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for alcohol, and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) in Boston.  

 

2. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

 

2.1 The SELCSP works to create local solutions to local problems to tackle issues of crime and 

disorder and improve the quality of life for people living, working or visiting the area. 

 

2.2       SELCSP is a partnership made up of the following organisations: 

- Boston Borough, East Lindsey and South Holland District Councils 

- Lincolnshire County Council 

  - Lincolnshire Police 

- Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue 

 

Page 12



- Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust  

- Probation Service 

- Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner  

 

2.3 Non-statutory agencies also contribute to the work of the partnership including housing 

associations and the voluntary sector. The SELCSP works closely with the County SLP and 

supports its priorities. 

 

2.4 The SELCSP has recently produced a Community Safety Strategy for 2022-2025 to 

demonstrate the work of partners at the sub-regional level. An action plan has been 

developed to support delivery, this is a working document, a copy of the current version is 

included in Appendix A. The strategy has been taken through the appropriate committee 

processes of all three sovereign councils for sign-off, this process was finalised on 

Wednesday 23rd November 2022.   

 

2.5 Identified priorities are as follows: 

 

2.6 Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) - Tackling ASB is a core role for the partnership with dedicated 

ASB Officers and Police Coordinators working together and with other agencies daily. We 

address high risk and complex ASB cases through multi-agency Anti-Social Behaviour Risk 

Assessment Conferences (ASBRACs). The district councils coordinate the Community Trigger 

(also known as the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review) which gives victims the right to 

demand a formal case review where the local threshold is met.  

 

2.7 Hate Crime – Through working more closely with Just Lincolnshire (the single equality 

organisation in the county) it has been identified that reporting of Hate Crime in 

Lincolnshire has decreased by 12.5% in 2020-21 compared to 2019-20, a reversal of year on 

year increases over the last decade and against a 9% increase nationally. This is concerning, 

particularly as Hate Crime is widely acknowledged to be underreported. The SELCSP seeks 

to work to raise awareness of hate crime, targeting individuals and groups who are more 

likely to be victims, and ensure there are a variety of methods for people to report Hate 

Crimes and incidents with confidence.  

 

2.8 Safer Streets & Night-Time Economy – Community safety work to support the Night-Time 

Economy and the safety of our streets within urban centres and local neighbourhoods 

provides greater opportunities for local businesses and communities to thrive with a 

reduced risk of crime and disorder. Government’s Beating Crime Plan gives focus to early 

intervention, prevention, and practical measures to make communities safer, and to tackle 

serious violence and neighbourhood crimes. The Safer Streets Fund has enabled 

improvements to be made to CCTV and ANPR capacity in East Lindsey, amongst other 

measures, to bring focus to safety at the neighbourhood level. Multi-agency working 

between police and ELDC licensing officers, utilising the drugs itemiser provides a real 

opportunity to increase safety during the evening hours and gives scope for widening this 

work across the partnership area, facilitated by the SELCSP. 

 

2.9 The Safety of Women & Girls – Using local data and information, a bid was submitted to 

round four of the Safer Streets fund and was successful in bringing nearly £400k to the 

partnership area. This will support work on Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) in 
Page 13



public places and aims to increase feelings of safety. CCTV was cited as something that 

would increase feelings of safety amongst local college students in Skegness and this is 

central to the bid.  A Sexual Violence Needs Assessment, commissioned by the PCC in 2020, 

showed that densely populated areas have the highest volume of offences.  Public 

engagement undertaken by the PCC’s Office also identifies that people worrying about 

being raped or sexually assaulted has risen year on year. Using police crime data and 

information from StreetSafe it has been possible to identify hot spot locations where 

harassment is the most frequently reported issue in Boston, Skegness, and Spalding. These 

areas are the focus of the bid, incorporating key night-time economy areas and pedestrian 

routes which have been identified as being disproportionately affected by VAWG. This 

compliments other work streams including the Women’s Concordat, which aims to improve 

outcomes for women and girls at risk of entering or who have already entered the criminal 

justice sector, and ensures it is embedded within local work streams to keep our sub-region 

a safe area to live, work and visit. 

 

2.10 Vulnerability & Safeguarding – Information from the Index of Multiple Deprivation shows 

that people living in the 10% most deprived neighbourhoods in Lincolnshire are three times 

more likely to have an adult safeguarding enquiry than those living in the least deprived 

areas, nearly four times likely to be a victim of crime, and nearly six times more likely to be 

in children’s social care. The second and third most deprived areas in the county can be 

found within our sub-region - Skegness and Chapel St Leonards.  Frontline officers, including 

police, council and health workers, encounter children and vulnerable adults on a regular 

basis, it is imperative that they are invested in safeguarding and adequately trained to carry 

out their duties competently. Recent cases of modern-day slavery and exploitation in 

Boston and South Holland demonstrate the need for officers and the public to report any 

suspicions. The SELCSP can drive work locally to ensure that officers can identify signs of 

issues such as sexual exploitation, county lines, modern slavery, and serious and organised 

crime, as well as understanding more recent approaches such as Contextual Safeguarding. 

 

3. ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR & THE PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 

 

3.1. Boston Borough Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Officer works in partnership with 

Lincolnshire Police, Housing Associations, and other agencies to tackle Anti-Social Behaviour 

(ASB). Officers follow the guidance set out in the Countywide procedures for tackling ASB in 

Lincolnshire, which details the tools and powers brought in by the Anti-Social Behaviour, 

Crime and Policing Act 2014. The full act can be accessed here: 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/contents/enacted 

 

3.2. A stepped approach is used to give advice and encourage people to stop the ASB before 

considering more formal (legal) methods.  People are provided with support, guidance and 

signposting to other organisations who may be able to help, where applicable. 

 

3.3. A Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) is in place in a designated area of Boston which 

prohibits the consumption of alcohol. The PSPO has been in place since January 2015 and 

has been extended twice. The current order will expire in January 2024, with potential for 

further extension. 

 

Page 14

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/contents/enacted


3.4. Information on enforcement action taken to tackle ASB, including that taken in relation to 

the PSPO is included in Appendix B. 

 

4. CCTV REPORT 2021-2022   

 

4.1. This is an examination of data collected by the CCTV department of Boston Borough 

Council. This data is collected and studied in order better understand the performance and 

achievements of Boston's CCTV unit but is clearly not (nor indeed intended to be), a full 

picture of criminal activity within the areas it covers.  

 

4.2. CCTV Data - The data relates to the period between 01/04/21 and 31/03/22. Within this 

time-period CCTV operators have: 

 

• Recorded 16,475 Daily log entries. 

• Completed 2,131 incident records which includes 

o 411 Boston camera area incidents. 

o 571 East Lindsey camera area incidents. 

o 82 South Holland camera area incidents. 

o 17 North Kesteven camera area incidents. 

o 413 Boston Borough Council Out of Hours Telephone Calls 

o 637 East Lindsey District Council Out of Hours Telephone Calls 

• CCTV contributed to 276 arrests (93 relating to Boston only) 

• Produced 369 pieces of evidence for Police / Court use. 

o 186 of these for the Boston area. 

o 109 for the East Lindsey area. 

o 52 for the South Holland area. 

o 22 for the North Kesteven area. 

 

The full report is included in Appendix C. 

5. SAFER LINCOLNSHIRE PARTNERSHIP (SLP)  

 

5.1. Safer Lincolnshire Partnership Health Check - Over the course of this year, the partnership has 

been implementing recommendations resulting from the last SLP Health Check.  On a routine 

basis the partnership conducts a review to: 

▪ Ensure compliance with statutory duties 

▪ Understand the efficiency and effectiveness of current governance arrangements 

▪ Understand the efficiency and effectiveness of the current operating and delivery model 

 

5.2. There were a number of elements analysed as part of the comprehensive health check, the 

findings of which were collated together to inform recommendations.  Elements of the review 

included a desktop assessment (looking at agency/representative attendance, action logs, risk 

register, delivery plan, compliance with statutory duties and research into other area 

Community Safety Partnerships), interviews with SLP Strategy Board attendees, Overview & 

Scrutiny Board members and Core Priority Group Chairs & Co-ordinators, workshops and a 

survey of Core Priority Groups.   

 
Page 15



 

 

The overarching findings in respect of the review were: 

▪ The SLP is effective, complies with statutory duties and has met its aims 

▪ Is a true multi-agency partnership; partners recognized and valued the breadth of agencies 

engaged 

▪ Recognition of the significant progress made since the last review in 2017 

▪ Support functions of co-ordination and analysis are crucial 

 

5.3. The resulting recommendations, therefore, were areas identified to drive the partnership 

forward and ensure it continues to deliver efficiently and effectively for the communities of 

Lincolnshire. A summary of those recommendations, agreed by the SLP Strategy Board, are as 

follows: 

 

5.4. Governance: 

o Overview & Scrutiny Board to be removed from the SLP structure 

o Scrutiny of the SLP to be fulfilled via: 

▪ Introduction of an Annual General Meeting 

▪ Introduction of an Annual Report 

▪ Continuation of Crime & Disorder Committees at a local authority level (as per 

statutory requirement) 

o Establish a relationship with the new Domestic Abuse partnership and identify the assurance 

required in respect of compliance with Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHR).  Note: completion 

of DHRs delegated to the Domestic Abuse Partnership, however the statutory duty remains 

with the SLP. 

 

5.5. Operating Structure: 

o Introduce more analytical information at SLP Strategy Board meetings more routinely 

o Introduce a more task and finish based approach 

o Agendas to be more focused to allow greater debate and discussion 

 

5.6. Analysis: 

o An action plan required to include: 

• Revise the Information Sharing Agreement/progress Memorandum of 

Understanding 

• Understand data available across the partnership for joint analysis and formalise 

data sharing 

• Address capacity within the analytical team and ensure roles/responsibilities are 

clarified and structured appropriately 

 

5.7. Measuring Success: 

o SLP Strategy Board to be clear on expected outcomes when setting a task 

o Ensure regular progress monitoring 

o Conduct evaluations as appropriate 

 
Page 16



5.8. Communications: 

o Introduction of a public newsletter 

o Introduce summaries post meetings to assist partners disseminate outcomes 

o Utilise existing opportunities across the partnership for public engagement 

 

5.9. Finance: 

o A funding paper to be drafted setting out options for possible ways forward in respect of 

funding arrangements 

 

5.10. Formal Merger: 

o Partners agreed to commence arrangements to progress to a formal merger. 

 

 
5.11. Strategic Assessment - The SLP has a statutory duty to carry out a strategic assessment to 

identify issues to be addressed in the area.  The last assessment was produced in 2021 to 
inform the priority issues to be addressed by the partnership from April 2022.   
 

5.12. In an unprecedented approach, the strategic assessment was produced as a tri-board 
product serving not only the SLP but also the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) 
and Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership (LSCP).    The document was a holistic and 
forward-looking assessment of community safety and safeguarding issues, taking into account 
the changing environment including the impact of the pandemic.  The Police & Crime 
Commissioner routinely shares the raw data from his annual survey with the Safer 
Communities Analytical team which ensures public perception information is integrated into 
the strategic assessment providing a more rounded and richer picture of community safety 
issues in the County. 

 

5.13. The information was presented to members of the SLP and utilised by them to determine, 
under the statutory responsibilities, areas of focus.  In doing so, the following considerations 
were also taken into account: 

▪ Is a multi-agency partnership response required? 

▪ What are specifically trying to achieve?  How does it overlap with other areas of 

business/priorities?  It is measurable?  Is it realistic?  It is proportionate?  Is there a 

definable end point? 

▪ Are there sufficient resources and capabilities to deliver the partnership response? 

▪ Who will provide leadership for delivering each part of the response? 
 

5.14. Strategy - Detailed below are the strategy, parameters and success measures set by the SLP 

Strategy Board in respect of each of our statutory areas of responsibility.  For each area a Core 

Priority Groups have been established.  These are the delivery arm of the SLP, attended by 

partners from across a number of agencies appropriate to the subject matter being addressed.  

The CPGs have been drafting delivery plans and a number have already been signed off by the 

SLP Strategy Board (namely; Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Reducing 

Reoffending) with the remainder in development.  The delivery plans are live documents are 

therefore subject to frequent updates, further information on the delivery plans is available 

upon request. 

 

 Page 17



5.15. Crime and Disorder 

 

o Focus: Digitally Enable Fraud and Identify Theft 

Strategy: Reduce victimisation through targeted prevention work 

o Parameters: Implement a range of targeted options taking account the victim 

demographics and deprivation location as informed by the evidence base 

o What will success look like: delivery of identified prevention activity and increased 

awareness  

 

5.16. Anti-Social Behaviour 

o Focus: Neighbourhood Anti-Social Behaviour 

o Strategy: Targeted prevention work based on evidence, problem solving options for 

complex and longer term neighbourhood Anti-Social behaviour 

o Parameters: Completion of prevention work, and clarity of options/potential alternative 

options for complex disputes 

o What will success look like: Increased awareness for both professionals and 

communities, resolution of neighbourhood anti-social behaviour in a timely manner and 

a decrease in severe cases including a reduction in the number of cases that escalate 

 

5.17. Reducing Reoffending 

 

o Focus: Integrated Offender Management, Women’s Strategy and Transition 

o Strategy: Provide alternatives to Criminal Justice for those in transition years, with 

appropriate support and diversion and link with the Integrated Offender Management 

Strategy 

o Parameters: Focus to be on female offenders and those in transition years 18 – 25, 

linking as appropriate to the Integrated Offender Management scheme 

o What will success look like: Reduction in repeat offending in female and transition years, 

utilise the Integrated Offender Management performance framework 

 

5.18. Substance Misuse 

 

o Focus: County Lines and Drug Related Deaths 

o Strategy: Ensure support services are available, utilise the evidence base to ensure 

prevention work is targeted in areas of greatest deprivation, use evidence base to 

address Drug Related Deaths 

o Parameters: Focus on early prevention in areas of greatest deprivation, ensure 

sufficient support services are available in those areas and the Drug Related Death 

process 

o What will success look like: Reduction of people with substance misuse issues including 

utilising Drug Related Death data, reduction of impact on health services, effective 

support in right locations 

 

 

Page 18



5.19. Performance and Analysis - The Safer Communities Analytical Team, whilst currently under 

capacity, are working to establish ‘dashboards’ of data to track the impact of the activity of 

CPG and help direct future activity.  More broadly, the team intend to routinely scan the 

environment and present the information to the SLP Strategy Board, meeting their objective of 

being a proactive and dynamic partnership ready to respond to emerging issues at the earliest 

opportunity. 

 

5.20. New Duty - Following public consultation in July 2019, the Government announced that it 

would bring forward legislation introducing a new serious violence duty on public bodies which 

will ensure relevant services work together to share data and knowledge and allow them to 

target their interventions to prevent serious violence altogether.  

 

5.21. The Government also announced that it would amend the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 

ensure that serious violence is an explicit priority for Community Safety Partnerships (known 

as the SLP in Lincolnshire) by making sure they have a strategy in place to tackle violent crime. 

 

5.22. The Duty requires specified authorities to identify the kinds of serious violence that occur in 

their area, the causes of that violence (so far as it is possible to do so), and to prepare and 

implement a strategy for preventing and reducing serious violence in the area.  

 

5.23. The Duty requires the following specified authorities to work together, and to consult 

educational, prison and youth custody authorities for the area in the preparation of their 

strategy: 

 

▪ Police 
▪ Probation Services 
▪ Youth Offending Teams 
▪ Fire and Rescue Services 
▪ Clinical Commissioning Groups 
▪ District councils 
▪ County Councils 

 

5.24. Although the Duty is not due to come into force until January 2023, the PCC, SLP and Public 

Health share a commitment to the priority to establish a Violence Reduction Programme.  To 

that end, thanks to funding from the PCC, a Violence Reduction Strategic Needs Assessment 

has been undertaken. 
 

5.25. It has been agreed that a Serious Violence Core Priority Group will be established.  In 

recognition of the Community Safety Partnerships wider remit in relation to community safety, 

and that many issues concerning violent crime can be interrelated, this will help to ensure that 

individual strategies (such as domestic abuse and substance misuse) are aligned without being 

duplicative.  Membership of the group will comprise the statutory partners who have a 

responsibility under the serious violence duty.   The first meeting was held mid-August to 

share with attendees the assessment and to commence discussions in respect of the strategy 

development.  A draft Strategy was shared with attendees during the October meeting and 

partners have taken this away to review and comment further.  The timeline is such that it will 

receive sign-off by the SLP Strategy Board at the December meeting (to align with budget 

setting and spending decisions, enabling an evidence-based assessment of where funds are 

best spent). 
Page 19



 

6. CONCLUSION 

6.1 This report has outlined the work carried out by the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership, the 

South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and within Boston Borough 

Council.  

6.2 The report also details ASB and PSPO Enforcement data and CCTV data for the district and 

the work that is due to be completed in the current financial year. 

 

7. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

7.1 The report will give an overview of the work taken place to support the Council’s statutory 

duty under s17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

7.2      It will support an increased understanding and awareness of the partnership working 

            taking place in the district. 

 

8. IMPLICATIONS 

 

8.1  SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

 None 

 

8.2  CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The area of work detailed in this report supports the following corporate priorities: 

• Boston Borough Council – ‘Priority 1 - People Focused’ (main priority) 

• East Lindsey District Council – ‘Improve equality of opportunity across the district and in 

target areas’  

• South Holland District Council – ‘Your Place’ and ‘Your Health and Wellbeing’ 

The production of a Community Safety Strategy is a strategic activity within the S&ELCP Annual 

Delivery Plan 2022-23.  

 

8.3  STAFFING 

Current staffing resource across the partnership will support the delivery of community 

safety activity with additional resources identified through further funding as necessary.  

 

8.4  CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The statutory duties required of CSPs, as set out in the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, which 

are met through working with the County SLP which works as a combined area for 

Lincolnshire.  

 

 

Page 20



8.5  DATA PROTECTION 

Data Protection will be dealt with under the partnership’s information sharing agreements. 

 

8.6  FINANCIAL 

External funding has been granted through the government Safer Streets Fund which will 
support the Safer Streets and Safety Against Women and Girls priorities. Further funding 
opportunities will be sought wherever possible to support delivery of the Community Safety 
strategy. That aside, delivery will be managed from existing partner commitments and 
resources.  

 

8.7  RISK MANAGEMENT 

All risks will be managed as part of the strategy and action plan development as 

appropriate.  

 

8.8  STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Portfolio Holders of each sovereign council, 

members of the South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and with key 

officers across the S&ELCP (Corporate Management and Service Managers). Feedback has 

been positive and constructive. 

The delivery timeframe for the Community Safety Strategy (as set out in the Annual 

Delivery Plan) is Quarter 2, 2022. 

 

8.9  REPUTATION 

 It is important that the council demonstrate its commitment to dealing with community 

safety issues and responding to local concerns. The Community Safety Strategy will have a 

positive impact on the reputation of the S&ELCP as it shows our dedication to improving 

the safety and wellbeing of our local communities. 

 

8.10  CONTRACTS 

 None 

 

8.11  CRIME AND DISORDER 

 The Council has a duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take steps to 

reasonably prevent crime and disorder in the district. Changes to this legislation were 

brought in through the Police and Justice Act 2006, with subsequent regulations coming in 

to force in 2007. The regulations set out the minimum requirements for partnership 

working to ensure effective practice and that all partnerships deliver to a common 

standard. This report evidenced compliance with the Acts and the regulations 

 

 

Page 21



8.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

 There are no direct implications from this report. It should be noted that CCTV surveillance 

techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act, which 

covers right to privacy. This is also subject to regulation under RIPA and CCTV Codes of 

Practice. 

 

8.13  HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

 Work carried out to reduce crime and disorder within the district and to support those that 

are affected helps to improve the health and wellbeing of those residents.  

 

8.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

 None 

8.15  LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Health By 2030, the gap in Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) between local areas 
where it is highest and lowest will have narrowed, and by 2035 HLE will 
rise by 5 years. 

Wellbeing By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing. 

Pride in Place By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with their town centre 
and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in every 
area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas 
closing. 

Crime By 2030, homicide, serious violence, and neighbourhood crime will have 
fallen, focused on the worst-affected areas. 

 

9. ACRONYMS 

CSP Community Safety Partnership 

SLP Safer Lincolnshire Partnership 

SELCSP South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership  

S&ELCP South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

CPG Core Priority Group 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

ASBRAC Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment Conference 

DHR – Domestic Homicide Review 

VAWG – Violence Against Women and Girls 

PSPO – Public Spaces Protection Order 

 
Page 22



APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Community Safety Strategy Action Plan V2 

APPENDIX B Anti-Social Behaviour & PSPO Data 2021-22 

APPENDIX C CCTV Report 2021-22 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None  

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Peter Hunn 

Peter.Hunn@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: Assistant Director - Wellbeing and Community 

Leadership 

Emily Spicer  

emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk 

Deputy Chief Executive – Communities 

John Leach 

John.Leach@boston.gov.uk 

 

Approved for publication:  

 

CHECKLIST - DELETE BEFORE SUBMISSION TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

S151 Officer consulted on financial implications: NA 

Monitoring Officer consulted on legal and constitutional implications: NA 

Portfolio Holder consulted: Yes  

Ward Member consulted: NA 

 

  

Page 23



FINANCE PROFORMA 

PROFORMA FOR APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:   

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:   
REPORT DATE:  
 

OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
      
      
      

Total Revenue Cost      

 
Funding required:   Considered by: Date: 
Total capital cost 
 

£  Enter committee here  

Revenue cost 
 

£  Enter Council or 
Cabinet/Executive here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
 
 
Risk 
 
 
 
Procurement 
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 

 

 

 

 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 24



 

1 
Last updated on 19/10/22 

Appendix A: Community Safety Strategy – Action Plan 2022-2023 

 

Area of 
Focus 

Project / Campaign Overview Timescales Progress 
 

  
Sa

fe
r 

St
re

et
s 

&
 N

ig
h

t-
Ti

m
e 

Ec
o

n
o

m
y 

Night-time economy – 
Op California 
(East Lindsey) 

• Operation to tackle drugs and promote safety in licensed 
premises. 

• The ELDC Senior Licencing Officer works with the Police 
Licencing Officer and the ‘drugs itemiser’ (which can 
detect residue of a range of drugs on people and 
surfaces in premises). 

• General promotion of safe nights out during summer 
season. 

• 7th /8th /28th July 

• 4th August 

• 11th August 

• 1st September 
2022 

 

Visits were undertaken at several 
locations across the coast. Proprietors 
and revellers were receptive to the 
activity and there was some positive 
feedback that it made people feel safe. 
 
The number of visits was slightly 
impacted by the loss of the itemiser 
machine maintained by ELDC which has 
reached the end of its working life. 
However, due to the thorough cleaning 
and maintenance programme 
(facilitated by ELDC), the machine was 
operational for several years more than 
expected.  Replacement of the machine 
is currently being explored.  

Promotion of 
StreetSafe  
 

• A pilot service for anyone to anonymously inform police 
of public places where you have felt or feel unsafe, 
because of environmental issues (e.g., street lighting, 
abandoned buildings or vandalism, and/or because of 
some behaviours, e.g., being followed or verbally 
abused. 

• May 2022 and 
ongoing 

StreetSafe is regularly being promoted 
on social media sites and on ‘Nextdoor’ 
by Lincolnshire Police and other 
partners. 
 
Review data and establish if any 
improvements can be made to areas to 
make them feel safer. 

Safer Streets Round 2 
promotion (East 
Lindsey) 

• CCTV Upgrades in Ingoldmells and Chapel St Leonards. 

• Installation of digital screens for safety messages. 

• Promotion of caravan watch 

• August / 
September 2022 

The digital screens were due to go live 
in August 2022 with a list of initial 
material being complied for use. 

P
age 25



 

2 
Last updated on 19/10/22 

Purple Flag • Purple Flag aims to raise the standard and broaden the 
appeal of town and city centres at night.  

• Scope out partner appetite to work towards achieving 
Purple Flag status in Boston, Spalding, and Skegness. 

• November 2022 
onwards 

Initial document produced to 
summarise the process for partners to 
review and consider. 

  
Ta

ck
lin

g 
A

n
ti

-S
o

ci
al

 B
eh

av
io

u
r 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
Awareness week 
(Countywide) 

• Annual campaign. The focus this year is on the impact of 
anti-social behaviour on young people, and the 
importance engaging with the wider public about their 
vital role in tackling ASB. 

• 18th to 24th July 
2022 

A social media campaign was 
coordinated across the county. 
 
A community event was held in East 
Lindsey by Platform Housing Group with 
partner agencies including ELDC/Lincs 
Police/Fire & Rescue/Victim Support 
and attendance from Elected Members. 

Community Trigger re-
launch of policy & 
procedures 
(countywide) 

• The Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review (also known as 
the Community Trigger) allows victims of persistent ASB 
to request a formal review of their case, where the local 
threshold is met. In Lincolnshire we are revising and re-
launching the countywide policy and procedures to 
educate staff and Elected Members about the process as 
well as the community. 

 

• 17th October 
2022 

A pool of people from across the county 
have been trained to act as 
independent chairs for panel meetings. 
 
The revised policy and procedures 
document is being taken to the County 
ASB CPG on 4th October 2022 for final 
sign-off pending some amendments. 
 
A comms plan for the launch of the new 
processes is ready to be led by district 
councils. 
 

Pilot a process 
(adapted from NKDC) 
to respond to reports 
of cannabis fumes 
from private 
properties in Boston 
Rural West 

• Process to be piloted in Boston Rural West (which covers 
Wybeton, Swineshead, Kirton and Sutterton). This will 
be monitored with the potential for further roll-out 
more widely.  

•  Agreed at the local Priority Setting 
meeting in Boston on 3rd October 2022. 

P
age 26



 

3 
Last updated on 19/10/22 

  
H

at
e

 C
ri

m
e

 
Hate Crime Awareness 
week 

• Annual campaign to raise awareness of what hate crimes 
are and how to report. 

• 8th to 15th 
October 2022 

Comms plan produced ready for the 
commencement of the awareness 
week. 

Increasing reporting of 
hate incidents 

• The Anti-Social Behaviour diary will be adapted to 
include a question on whether the victim believes that 
the ASB is targeted because of the victim’s identity or 
perceived identity    

• By 31st October 
2022 

To be completed in October 2022 for 
ongoing use. The number of incidents 
identified as such will be monitored on 
a routine basis. 
 

  
Th

e 
Sa

fe
ty

 o
f 

W
o

m
en

 &
 G

ir
ls

 

White Ribbon Day & 
16 Days of Action 

• An annual day to end violence against women. This day 
marks the start of the 16 days of action against domestic 
violence. 

• 25th November 
to 10th 
December 2022 

White ribbons have been acquired to 
distribute to Elected Members to ask 
them to pledge their support. 

Safer Streets round 4  
 
 
 
 
 

 

• CCTV Safe Zone areas in Boston/Spalding & Skegness 
town centres – promoted walking routes for areas that 
will have blanket CCTV coverage  

• Expansion and updating of current CCTV software 
system looking at person/description identification 
where CCTV cameras locate and monitor automatically 

• Community/volunteer CCTV operators 

• Just Lincolnshire – Community ambassador programmes 
/ awareness raising about Anti-Social Behaviour / reduce 
barriers to reporting ASB & Violence Against Women & 
Girls. 

• August 2022 to 
March 2024 

Camera installation commenced in 
Spalding ahead of schedule on 20th 
September 2022. Digital infrastructure 
has been installed and configured in 
preparation for the upgraded digital 
cameras. To-date, 36 cameras have 
been installed and recording is enabled 
on the new Spalding local digital 
recorder with live stream and playback 
enabled from Boston Borough Council. 
A draft job description is being 
produced for the community-based 
volunteer scheme which will provide 
administrative support for CCTV 
operators and police officers to enable 
them to focus on the core parts of their 
job. Volunteers will conduct image 
reviews and produce evidence packs for 
court. 

P
age 27



 

4 
Last updated on 19/10/22 

Self Defence Classes 
for females in Boston. 

• Supporting the continuation of a local self defence class 
for women and girls (aged 12 upwards) at the Geoff 
Moulder Leisure Complex. 

• Supporting publicity of the group.  

• October 2022 
onwards 

Funding to be provided from left over 
Sanctuary Scheme to purchase 
equipment to support the continuation 
of the group. 

  
V

u
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

 &
 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

d
in

g 
    

Dementia Bands pilot • There are an estimated 11,800 people in Lincolnshire 
living with dementia, 7,200 have been officially 
diagnosed (NHS data). 

• This pilot project, led by the Office of the Police & Crime 
Commissioner with support from local community 
groups, aims to protect vulnerable people living with 
dementia by giving them a wristband that stores the 
contact details of the wearers next of kin. If they get 
lost, police or the public can quickly access their next of 
kin’s details and contact them 

• September 2022 
onwards 

The pilot scheme was launched on 21st 
September 2022. The pilot will use 600 
bands across East Lindsey with further 
roll-out if successful. 

 

P
age 28



Appendix B 

Anti-Social Behaviour Enforcement Action taken by Boston Borough Council in Partnership 

with Lincolnshire Police Between 1st April 2021 and 31st March 2022 

 

Boston Borough Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Officer works in partnership with 

Lincolnshire Police, Housing Associations, and other agencies to tackle Anti-Social Behaviour 

(ASB). Officers follow the guidance set out in the Countywide procedures for tackling ASB in 

Lincolnshire, which details the tools and powers brought in by the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime 

and Policing Act 2014. The full act can be accessed here:  

 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/contents/enacted 

 

A stepped approach is used to give advice and encourage people to stop the ASB before 

considering more formal (legal) methods.  People are provided with support, guidance and 

signposting to other organisations who may be able to help, where applicable. 

The process differs for adults and young people, below is an example of the approach. 

 

Stage 1 

Adults and Under 18s: Advice letter 

 

Stage 2  

Adults and Under 18s: Warning letter 

 

Stage 3 

Adults: Community Protection Warning Notice (CPNW) 

Under 18s: Acceptable Behaviour Agreement (ABA) 

 

Stage 4 (formal action) 

Adults: Community Protection Notice (CPN) 

Under 18s: Civil Injunction  

 

Stage 5 (Adults) – Breach of Community Protection Notice 

Criminal Behaviour Order (CBO) 

 

Stages 1-5 for adults also applies for the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) which 

prohibits the consumption of alcohol within a specified area. In addition, Fixed Penalty 

Notices (FPN) can be issued for breaching the PSPO (i.e. refused a request from an 

authorised officer to desist from drinking alcohol within the designated area or leave the 

area 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/contents/enacted


 

Enforcement Data - ASB 

 

The table below shows the type of enforcement action used in Boston to tackle ASB 

between 1st April 2021 and 31st March 2022, with comparisons to the previous two financial 

years.   

 

Year Stage 1 Stage 2 ABA Injunction CPNW CPN 

21-22 78 28 7 1 0 0 

20-21 70 31 3 0 0 0 

19-20 61 80 17 9 2 0 

 
 
Enforcement Data – PSPO 
 
Boston Borough Council’s Public Space Protection Order (in relation to Alcohol) commenced  
on Monday 12th January 2015 and has been extended a second time until 11th January 2024.   
The effect of the Order is to prohibit the consumption of alcohol within the PSPO area and  
to require specified things to be done by person/s consuming alcohol in that area.   
 
The table below shows the type of enforcement action used in relation to the PSPO 

between 1st April 2021 and 31st March 2022, with comparisons to the previous two financial 

years.   
 

Year Stage 1 Stage 2 CPNW CPN FPN 
2021-22 27 4 0 1 0 

2020-21 99 15 8 0 0 

2019-20 19 57 7 1 0 
 

 

Page 30



 
 

CCTV Annual Statistical Report 

 

2022 
  

Page 31



Page 2 of 8 
 
 
 
 

Introduction 
 
This document provides an examination of data collected by the CCTV department of 
Boston Borough Council. This data is collected and studied in order better understand the 
performance and achievements of Boston's CCTV unit but is clearly not (nor indeed 
intended to be), a full picture of criminal activity within the areas it covers.  
 
The majority of data in this report has been exported from the 'VTAS' software in use by 
Boston CCTV. Boston CCTV has no set targets for incidents or arrests, and does not receive 
any benefits or funding based on results or achievements. Altering or manipulating statistics 
would serve us no purpose, so the figures within this document can be confidently taken as 
factual. 
 
 

Scale of Data 
 
The data relates to the period between 01/04/21 and 31/03/22. Within this time period, 
CCTV operators have: 
 

Recorded 16,475 Daily log entries. 
Completed 2,131 incident records which includes... 

        411 Boston camera area incidents. 
        571 East Lindsey camera area incidents. 
          82 South Holland camera area incidents. 
          17 North Kesteven camera area incidents. 
        413 Boston Borough Council Out of Hours Telephone Calls 
        637 East Lindsey District Council Out of Hours Telephone Calls 

 
CCTV contributed to 276 arrests (93 relating to Boston only) 
 
Produced 369 pieces of evidence for Police / Court use. 
 

    186 of these for the Boston area. 
    109 for the East Lindsey area. 
      52 for the South Holland area. 
      22 for the North Kesteven area. 

 
 
 

  

Page 32



Page 3 of 8 
 
 
 
 

Arrests / Incidents 
 
The chart below shows a monthly breakdown of the 93 arrests where CCTV has provided a 
direct contribution in Boston. Also included in this chart, are the number of evidential CCTV 
packages seized by Police, the number of CCTV incidents logged, and also the number of 
incidents logged in regards to the Council’s Out of Hours service. Boston Borough Council 
monitor CCTV for several other local authority areas, but the data within this report relates to 
Boston only. Some data from other areas is included to give some context to the work of the 
CCTV Control Room.  
 

BBC CCTV Performance Data 21/22 

Month Arrests Evidence Incidents Out of Hours 

April 13 15 40 20 

May 11 22 40 28 

June 5 5 27 38 

July 7 19 34 36 

August 4 24 38 33 

September 9 11 35 39 

October 3 15 36 62 

November 6 18 26 34 

December 15 6 28 29 

January 4 20 40 27 

February 9 12 28 45 

March 7 19 39 22 

Year Total 93 186 411 413 

 
  

Page 33



Page 4 of 8 
 
 
 
 

Boston - Incident Category Breakdown 
 

2020/2021  2021/2022 

Incident Category No,   Incident Category No, 

Alarm Activation 7   Alarm Activation 5 

Alcohol 7   Alcohol 14 

Anti-Social Behaviour 41   Anti-Social Behaviour 60 

Bicycle Theft 2   Bicycle Theft 2 

Breach of Conditions or Ban 0   Breach of Conditions or Ban 6 

Burglary 3   Burglary 10 

Criminal Damage & Arson 9   Criminal Damage & Arson 18 

Domestic Abuse 3   Domestic Abuse 8 

Drugs 16   Drugs 15 

Emergencies 3   Emergencies 1 

Environmental Crime 3   Environmental Crime 6 

Events 1   Events 0 

Fire / Ambulance / Sudden Death 4   Fire / Ambulance / Sudden Death 5 

Fraud 1   Fraud 3 

Licensing 0   Licensing 1 

Other Crime 13   Other Crime 10 

Other Theft 1   Other Theft 4 

Public Order 20   Public Order 19 

Robbery 4   Robbery 7 

Search for Person 57   Search for Person 30 

Shoplifting 38   Shoplifting 28 

Suspicious Behaviour 26   Suspicious Behaviour 14 

Theft from the Person 0   Theft from the Person 3 

Traffic Offence 53   Traffic Offence 63 

Vehicle Crime 2   Vehicle Crime 4 

Violence and Sexual 23   Violence and Sexual 45 

Weapons 14   Weapons 16 

 
 
This table shows a comparison between the 2020/21 report and 2021/22. A number of types 
of incidents have seen an increase, likely due to the lifting of Covid related restrictions. 
However incidents are still generally lower than 2019/20 levels. 
 
 
 

  

Page 34



Page 5 of 8 
 
 
 
 

Cameras / Locations 
 2020-21 2021-22 

 Camera Incidents Incidents 

1 Camera 20 - Ingram Memorial 83 85 

2 Camera 6 - Market Place 69 76 

3 Camera 7 - Straight Bargate 56 66 

4 Camera 23 - Haven Bridge 53 65 

5 Camera 5 - Market Place 57 62 

6 Camera 3 - West Street 74 58 

7 Camera 13 - Footbridge 24 49 

8 Camera 8 - Straight Bargate 30 48 

9 Camera 26 - Red Lion Street 34 48 

10 Camera 15 - New Street 25 45 

 
 
The list here shows the top 10 Boston cameras in regards to the numbers of incidents in 
which they have been used. The number of incidents from 2020/21 is included for 
comparison 
 
Incidents are often covered by more than one camera in order to follow proceedings or cover 
the incident from multiple angles for better evidence capture. Camera 20 is top again as it 
covers the entire market place, and is used to support other cameras that may be closer to 
the problem area.  
 
Central Park had entered the top 10 cameras in 20-21, however a large amount of the 
incidents logged during that period were Covid-19 related. Now those restrictions are no 
longer in force, Central Park has dropped out of the top 10.   

Page 35



Page 6 of 8 
 
 
 
 

Police Data Comparison 
 
Our incident categories are grouped in a similar way, and therefore can be comparable with 
official Police statistics which can be viewed freely online at www.police.uk. The table below 
shows police collected data regarding reported crime within a 1 mile radius centred on the 
Municipal Buildings. This is then compared with the CCTV performance data. 
 

When we compare all reported crime in the 
area with CCTV data for the same incident 
categories we see on average CCTV is 
involved in 5.1% of incidents. (The 20/21 
figure was 3.8%) 
 
Similarly if we compare the total reported 
crime (4685) with the number of evidence 
disks produced for the Boston area (186) 
then we can conclude that CCTV provides 
video evidence for 4% of reported crime.  
 
The 21/22 UK figure for reported crime that 
results in either a charge or a summons is 
5.6% (www.gov.uk) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Out of Hours Service 
 
The Out of Hours services for Boston Borough Council and 
East Lindsey District Council were operated from our 24hr 
CCTV Control Room for the period of this report. After May 
2022 this service has been operated by Serco. This change 
has been put in place to make better use of CCTV 
resources, by allowing CCTV Operators to concentrate on their front line CCTV duties. The 
small table here shows a comparison between the calls logged by CCTV in June and July 
2021, and the calls answered by Serco in the same period of 2022.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Offence Police CCTV 

Anti-Social Behaviour 993 60 

Bicycle Theft 110 2 

Burglary 144 10 

Criminal Damage & Arson 397 18 

Drugs 173 15 

Other Crime 109 10 

Other Theft 251 4 

Public Order 287 19 

Robbery 49 7 

Shoplifting 429 28 

Theft From the Person 19 3 

Vehicle Crime 100 4 

Violence and Sexual 1579 45 

Weapons 45 16 

  
CCTV 
2021 

Serco 
2022 

June 38 46 

July 36 69 

Page 36

http://www.police.uk/


Page 7 of 8 
 
 
 
 

Hours of Activity 
 
The graph below shows the number of CCTV incidents by the hour of the day in which they 
occurred (based on a 24hr clock).  
 

 
It is often considered that CCTV can be limited in the hours of darkness, but this graph 
shows that this is not the case. Greater activity exist outside of the conventional work/school 
hours with lower levels of incident activity in the early hours of the morning. CCTV is mostly 
centred on town centres, where street lighting levels are usually good. Areas of low light 
(such as park areas) are supplemented by Infrared lighting on the cameras themselves to 
provide illumination around the camera area.  
 

2022/23 
 
In this report, we can see some signs of behaviours returning to some kind of normality after 
the removal of Covid restrictions. At the moment it is difficult to predict where this will go, 
especially with difficult financial issues many people are facing also affecting behaviour. For 
example, we would normally expect a rise in acquisitive crime such as shoplifting during 
times of financial hardship, but we are not seeing this in the CCTV figures.  
 
We have received funding through the Home Office Safer Streets Fund to improve town 
centre CCTV in the areas of Skegness, Spalding and Boston. This funding is specifically 
aimed at providing safer routes for women and girls in town centres and transport hubs. 
Boston will see these upgrades likely in the final quarter of the 22/23 financial year.  
 
With these upgrades, we hope to increase the availability of good CCTV evidence to Police 
by the use of camera clusters providing permanent 360 degree coverage in town centre 
areas. From the comparison of Police crime data and our CCTV data we begin to see the 
importance of CCTV evidence in progressing reported crime towards someone being 
charged and summoned to court for that crime.  
 

Page 37



Page 8 of 8 
 
 
 
 
For that purpose, we are looking at several ways to improve Police access to CCTV 
evidence. We are in the early stages of discussions with Police to increase the availability of 
CCTV image review consoles in more Police Stations, making it easier for officers to review 
CCTV footage without excessive amounts of travel.  
 
As part of the Safer Streets project, we will also be utilising Police Volunteers as CCTV 
Assistants. With the increase in available evidence their aim will be to assist Police to review 
CCTV footage, and assist CCTV operators with the production of evidence. Although the 
future is somewhat unpredictable at the moment, we aim to have the resources and flexibility 
in place to address whatever arises.  

Page 38



 

 

 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 
 

 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
 

 ▪   

 

18 May 2022 
 

Representation by Transported Arts 
BTAC Financial Statement as at 31 March 2022 
Work Programme 
 

 
Interim Strategic Finance Manager 

 

 ▪   

 

7 July 2022 
 
MEETING INQUORATE.    

Installation of 4. No Changing Places Toilets  
Central Park Play Area  (following site visit on the morning of the meeting) 
Update on BTAC Operatives 
Work Programme 
 

 
Deputy Chief Executive – Delivery 

Lead Officer of Committee 
Operations Manager 

 

 ▪   

 
 
 
 

10 Aug 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Installation of 4. No Changing Places Toilets  
Central Park Play Area  (following site visit on the morning of the previous 
meeting) 
Update on BTAC Operatives 
Work Programme 
 

 
Deputy Chief Executive – Delivery 

Lead Officer of Committee 
 

Operations Manager 
 

 

 
 
 

8 Sep. 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Finance Update 
Update on Locking of Central Park 
Events  
BTAC Small Grants Scheme – Round 1 
Work Programme 
 

Meeting adjourned due to the death of HM Queen Elizabeth. 
Meeting reconvened 20th September 2022 
 

 
Strategic Finance Manager 

Anti-Social Behaviour Officer 
Events Officer 

Local Communities Development Officer  
 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 3



 

 

 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
 

 ▪   
 
 
 
 

 

3 Nov. 2022 
 
 

 
BTAC – Responsibilities and account of service area charges to BTAC 
Central Park Play Area – Report of Member Working Group. 

 
Strategic Finance Manager 

Play and Physical Activity Officer 
 

 ▪   

 

15 Dec 2022 
 
 

 

BTAC Small Grants – Round 3 
Attendance by Inspector Clarkson and Superintendent Coates from 
Lincolnshire Police. 
Annual ASB Report and CCTV Report with update CCTV Information 
supporting the attendance by Lincolnshire Police.  
 
No additional reporting will be accepted onto this agenda.  
 

 
Local Communities Development Officer 

 

Community Safety Manager/ CCTV Manager 

 

 
9 Feb.  2023 
 

 
Breakdown of costs across all service areas paid for by BTAC 
Budget 
 

 

   

 
23 Mar 2023 

 
BTAC Small Grants Scheme 
 

 

 

 
 

SUPPORT GROUPS: 
None.  
 

Chairman:  Councillor Paul Goodale 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Lead Officer:  Phil Perry.  Assistant Director Culture and Leisure. 
Clerk:   Karen Rist.  Democratic Services Officer. 
 

P
age 40


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 BTAC SMALL GRANTS SCHEME AND BTAC EMPOWERING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES GRANT SCHEME
	2 CRIME AND DISORDER REPORT TO INCLUDE REPRESENTATION BY LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE
	Appendix A. Community Safety Strategy
	Appendix B. Anti Social Behaviour PSPO Data
	Appendix C. CCTV Report

	3 WORK PROGRAMME

